
 

 
1 

 
 

Notice is hereby given that on Friday, August 9, 2024, the Board of Directors of 

Tarrant Appraisal District will meet in open session beginning at 8:00 a.m. 

at the Tarrant Appraisal District boardroom, 2500 Handley Ederville Rd, Fort Worth, TX 

This meeting and supporting material will be available at www.tad.org and TAD’s YouTube and 

Facebook channels. 

Please note – In addition to our standard “Public Comments,” there will be two “Public Hearings” 

on specific subjects. For the two specific subjects, comments will only be heard on that subject 

matter that is up for comments. Considering the number that are likely to address the board, all 

comments will be limited to three (3) minutes. The Board may refuse to hear comments on 

subjects not reasonably related to items on the Agenda or to policies and procedures of TAD. 

Upon approaching the podium, please state your name, resident city and the specific agenda 

item or subject you are addressing. 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order 

 

2. Verify Presence of Quorum and Posting of Meeting Notice 

 

3. Pledges of Allegiance 

 

4. Invocation 

 

5. Public Hearing on 2025 Tarrant Appraisal District Annual Budget 

(a) Public Comments 

(b) Discussion 

 

6. Public Hearing on 2025-2026 Tarrant Appraisal District Reappraisal Plan 

(a) Public Comments 

(b) Discussion 

 

7. Recess to executive/closed session pursuant to the following part(s) of the Texas 

Open Meetings Act Government Code, Ch. 551 for the following purposes:  

 

Section 551.071 - Consultation with attorney on deliberation of a matter in which the 

board seeks the advice of its attorney about contemplated litigation or on a matter in 

which the duty of the attorney to the governmental body under the Texas Disciplinary 

Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflict with the Open 

Meetings Act 

 

8. Return to Executive Session for Possible Action on Items Deliberated on in 

Executive/Closed Session 

http://www.tad.org/


 

 
2 

Reconvene in Open Session for possible action on items deliberated in Executive 

Session related to contemplated litigation or on a matter in which the duty of the attorney 

to the governmental body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of 

the State Bar of Texas clearly conflict with the Open Meetings Act 

 

9. Action Item  

Action regarding adoption of 2025 Tarrant Appraisal District Annual Budget 

 

10. Action Item 

Action regarding adoption of 2025-2026 Tarrant Appraisal District Reappraisal 

Plan 

 

11. Hear Public Comments 

 

12. Information Items 

a. Report by Taxpayer Liaison Officer 

b. Report by TAD Board of Directors IS Committee 

c. Report by TAD Board of Directors ARB Committee 

d. Report by Chief Appraiser (Staff, Goals, Public Speaking, & Recovery) 

 

13. Action Items, cont 

a. Action regarding approval of Board of Directors meeting minutes – June 7, 2024; 

July 1, 2024; July 22, 2024 

b. Action regarding permission for Chief Appraiser to enter into an Interlocal 

Agreement with Tarrant County for Sheriff’s Department Security Services 

c. Discussion and possible action concerning Transparency Stars program through 

the Texas Comptroller 

d. Action regarding award of contract for retiree group medical supplement 

insurance for 2025 

e. Action regarding award of contract for financial audit services 

 

14. Propose Future Agenda Items; Set Next Meeting Date; Adjourn 

• Next meeting “Called” date: 8:00 AM Friday, September 6, 2024, at Tarrant 

Appraisal District, 2500 Handley Ederville Rd, Fort Worth, Texas 

• Future Agenda Items (Please submit requested agenda items to the Chairman & 

Chief Appraiser by email no later than 8-days prior to next scheduled meeting (to 

allow time for draft process and posting). 

• Adjourn 

Joe Don Bobbitt 

Executive Director/Chief Appraiser 

 

The public is invited to address the Board during the Public Comments period under Agenda 

Item 9 regarding any item on the Agenda and other issues under the Board’s jurisdiction. 

During the Public Comments period, the Chairman will allow each speaker three minutes but may expand the time as needed if 

doing so will not interfere with the Board’s completing its business and adjourning its meeting at a reasonable time. The Board may 

refuse to hear comments on subjects not reasonably related to items on the Agenda, to policies and procedures of Tarrant Appraisal 

District or Tarrant Appraisal Review Board, or to other issues under the Board’s jurisdiction. The Board may not respond to 

comments regarding items not on the Agenda. 



 

 
3 

Item 5:  Public Hearing on 2025 Tarrant Appraisal District Annual Budget 

 

 

In this public hearing, the Board seeks public comment as it considers the proposed 2025 Tarrant 

Appraisal District Annual Budget and prepares to approve the budget for the next fiscal year. This 

public hearing was properly noticed per the Texas Property Tax Code. 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 
4 

Item 6:  Public Hearing on 2025-2026 Tarrant Appraisal District Reappraisal Plan 

 

In this public hearing, the Board seeks public comment as it considers the proposed 2025-2026 

Tarrant Appraisal District Biennial Reappraisal Plan and prepares to approve a plan. This public 

hearing was properly noticed per the Texas Property Tax Code. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
5 

Item 7: Recess to executive/closed session pursuant to the following part(s) of the Texas 

Open Meetings Act Government Code, Ch. 551 for the following purposes:  

 

Section 551.071 - Consultation with attorney on deliberation of a matter in which the 

board seeks the advice of its attorney about contemplated litigation or on a matter in 

which the duty of the attorney to the governmental body under the Texas Disciplinary 

Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflict with the Open 

Meetings Act 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
6 

Item 8:  Return to Executive Session for Possible Action on Items Deliberated on in 

Executive/Closed Session: 

Reconvene in Open Session for possible action on items deliberated in Executive 

Session related to contemplated litigation or on a matter in which the duty of the attorney 

to the governmental body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of 

the State Bar of Texas clearly conflict with the Open Meetings Act 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
7 

Action Item 9:  Action regarding adoption of 2025 Tarrant Appraisal District Annual 

Budget 

 

Budget workshops for the 2025 budget were held on May 10, 2024, and June 7, 2024. 

Following input from the Board of Directors, a proposed budget was produced and was timely 

submitted to the taxing entities that participate in the financing of the District on June 14, 2024, 

per section 6.06(a) of the Texas Property Tax Code.  

 

As required by Section 6.062, a public hearing notice was timely published to furnish the 

general public with summary information concerning TAD’s proposed FY 2025 budget and the 

date, time, and location of the public hearing. In compliance with Section 6.06(b), the presiding 

officers of all the taxing units which financially support the district have been provided with 

copies of the proposed budget and notification of the budget public hearing. 

 

Summarized totals for Proposed 2025 Tarrant Appraisal District budget follows: 

 

Salaries and Employee Fringe Benefits                   $22,938,220 
Materials & Supplies                                                      6,086,184 
Professional Services                                                    4,274,530 

Facilities                                                                             252,685 

Capital Outlay & Contingency                                          804,497 

                             TOTAL PROPOSED 2025 BUDGET         $34,356,116 

 

The increase from the current year’s budget is $4,927,210 which is a 16.74% increase. 

The majority of the increase is for projected expenses for a new Computer Assisted Mass 

Appraisal (CAMA) software system, funds for a homestead exemption audit and 

continued efforts for IS-related consulting fees and computer hardware & software 

improvements. 

Subject to input from the public hearing and the Board, the proposed FY 2025 TAD budget can 

be adjusted upward or downward or left as proposed. Per the Texas Property Tax Code, the 

budget must be approved by September 15, 2024. 

 

Staff Recommendation: 

 

 Approve and adopt the FY 2025 TAD Budget as proposed   

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
8 
 



 

 
9 
 



 

 
10 

 



 

 
11 

 



 

 
12 

 



 

 
13 

 



 

 
14 

 



 

 
15 

 



 

 
16 

 



 

 
17 

 



 

 
18 

 



 

 
19 

 



 

 
20 

 



 

 
21 

 



 

 
22 

 



 

 
23 

 



 

 
24 

 



 

 
25 

 



 

 
26 

 



 

 
27 

 



 

 
28 

 



 

 
29 

 



 

 
30 

 



 

 
31 

 



 

 
32 

 



 

 
33 

Action Item 10:  Action regarding adoption of the 2025-2026 Tarrant Appraisal District 

Reappraisal Plan 

 

Enclosed is a summary of the major changes of the proposed 2025-2026 Tarrant Appraisal 
District Reappraisal Plan. This plan has been prepared pursuant to Section 6.05 of the Texas 
Property Tax Code. It has been prepared based on discussion and formal actions taken at the 
July 22, 2024, TAD Board of Directors meeting. The Texas Property Tax Code requires that 
appraisal district reappraisal plans be adopted no later than September 15th of each even 
numbered year. 
 

Subject to input from the public hearing and the Board, the proposed 2025-2026 Tarrant 

Appraisal District Reappraisal Plan can be adjusted or left as proposed. Per the Texas Property 

Tax Code, the plan must be approved by September 15, 2024. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
34 

 



 

 
35 

 



 

 
36 

 

 



 

 
37 
 



 

 
38 

 



 

 
39 
 



 

 
40 

 



 

 
41 

 



 

 
42 

 



 

 
43 
 



 

 
44 

 



 

 
45 

Item 11:  Hear Public Comments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
46 

Item 12(a):  Report by Taxpayer Liaison Officer 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
47 

Item 12(b):  Report by TAD Board of Directors IS Committee 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
48 

Item 12(c):  Report by TAD Board of Directors ARB Committee 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
49 

Item 12(d):  Report by Chief Appraiser 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
50 

Chief Appraiser Report 
Staff Introduction: Robert Evans, Business Personal Property Director. 

Accomplished Staff Goals:  

• CAMA RFP 

• Update purchasing policy for IS 

• Create Deputy Role 

• Better Communication with entities 

• DocuSign to speed up ARB process 

• Current Phone System 

• Office 365 

• Customer Queue system 

Public Speaking Engagements: 

• June 10th- Haltom City Council 
• June 13th- Lakeside City Council  
• June 20th- Dalworthington Gardens 
• June 24- Pantego 
• June 25- City of Hurst 
• June 29- 2024 10:30 AM Frost Bank 
• July 2- City of Colleyville 
• July 8- Haltom Senior Center  
• July 16- Lake Worth City  
• July 22- Eagle Mountain-Saginaw ISD 
• August 6- White Settlement City 

Recovery:  

• Computers and Equipment being ordered 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
51 

Action Item 13(a):  Action regarding approval of Board of Directors meeting minutes – 

June 7, 2024; July 1, 2024; July 22, 2024 

 

Staff Recommendation: 

 

Approve Board of Directors meeting minutes from June 7, 2024; July 1, 2024; & 

July 22, 2024, as presented 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
52 

Tarrant Appraisal District 
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 

June 7, 2024 
 
This meeting was conducted in compliance with the Open Meetings Act as written in statute 
and was broadcast live on Facebook. A quorum of the members of the Board attended in 
person at the TAD offices. 
 
These minutes are a summary of the only subjects the Board addressed and the actions it took. 
For details, see the agenda and video posted on TAD’s website at this URL: 
https://www.tad.org/board-of-directors and Video recording posted at:  
https://www.facebook.com/TarrantAD 
 

Members present: 
Mr. Alan Blaylock 
Ms. Wendy Burgess, Tax Assessor Collector 
Mr. Rich DeOtte 
Mr. Gary Losada 
Ms. Gloria Peña, Secretary 
Mr. Vince Puente, Chair 
 
Also Participating: 
Mr. Joe Don Bobbitt, Chief Appraiser 
Mr. Brad Patrick, Director of Administration 
Mr. Matthew Tepper, Attorney  
 
Vince Puente called the meeting to order at 8:15am, verified a quorum was present and the 
notice was posted timely. After pledges and the Invocation, the Board took up the following 
agenda items: 
 
 5. Recognize Visitors; Hear Public Comments 
 
Mr. Moore, Mr. Bennett, Mr. Dodson, and Mr. Crouch spoke. Chair Puente mentioned that he 
has chosen Gary Losada to chair the subcommittee regarding the appointment of new ARB 
officers and members. He said he asked Alan Blaylock to serve as the chair of the subcommittee 
on IT issues. 
 
 6. Information Items 

                       a. Report by Taxpayer Liaison Officer  

TLO Shirley Jacobson was unable to attend. 

b. Report by Chief Appraiser 

https://www.tad.org/board-of-directors
https://www.facebook.com/TarrantAD


 

 
53 

Mr. Bobbitt presented his written report. 

 

7. Action Items 
a. Action regarding approval of Board of Directors meeting minutes May 10, 

2024 
 
Ms. Peña moved to approve the draft as presented and Mr. DeOtte seconded. The vote was 
unanimous, 4-0, so the motion passed. Mr. DeOtte clarified that he was abstaining from voting 
as he was not present for the May 10th meeting. 
 
  b. Action on proposed budget amendments 
 
Ms. Peña moved to approve the 2024 budget amendment as presented to authorize the use of 
reserves to pay for equipment/software needed to purchase due to the cyber incident that 
occurred on March 21, 2024. This does not result in an increase for the entities in the overall 
budget. Mr. Blaylock seconded this motion, and the vote was unanimous, 5-0. The motion 
passed, 5-0.  
 

8. Discussion Items  
 
a. 2025 Budget Workshop – discussion only; no action to be taken 

 
This item was discussed however, no action was taken.  
 

9. Recess to executive/closed session pursuant to the following part(s) of the Texas 
Open Meetings Act Government Code Ch. 551, for the following purposes: 
 
At 9:38am, the Board recessed into Executive Session as provided in Item 9 of the Agenda. 
 
Section 551.071(1)(a) – Consultation with attorney about pending or contemplated litigation; 
including challenges and strategies related to same: Cause# 153-343666-23 - F7SSSM LLC; 
Cause# 153-346168-23 – Clearfork MFIILP; Cause# 153-342-345467-23 - Omni Fort Worth 
Partnership LP; Cause# 352-346167-23 – Clearfork MF1, LP; Cause# 236-345744-23 – Silver 
Oaks, LP 
 
Section 551.074 - Deliberation on the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, 
duties, discipline, dismissal, of a public officer or employee related to the Chairman of the 
Tarrant Appraisal Review Board 
 
Section 551.076 – Deliberation regarding security devices, security software or security audits. 
 



 

 
54 

10. Return to Open Session for Possible Action on Items Deliberated on in 
Executive/Closed Session  
 
At 11:39am, the Board returned to Open Session as provided in Item 10 of the Agenda.  
 
Mr. DeOtte moved to transfer $300,000 from the building fund to a new litigation committed 
fund. Mr. Losada seconded and the motion passed, 5-0. 
 

11. Action Items 
 

a. Consider and possible action on purchase or lease of replacement servers 
and consider moving committed funds to the general fund for action on this 
item 

 
Mr. Blaylock moved to authorize the Chief Appraiser to purchase or lease new server and 
related equipment in an amount not to exceed $250,000 and further authorize the movement 
of $250,000 from the technology reserve fund to the general fund. Mr. DeOtte seconded and 
the vote 5-0. The motion passed. 
 

6.b. cont. 
Commercial Director William Durham gave a presentation on commercial and litigation 
processes. 
 

12. Propose Future Agenda Items; Set Next Meeting Date; Adjourn 
 
No future agenda items were proposed; the next Meeting is scheduled for July 1, 2024, at 9am 
at the Tarrant County Commissioner’s Court; the meeting adjourned at 12:06pm. 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Gloria Peña, Board Secretary 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Vince Puente, Board Chair  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
55 

Tarrant Appraisal District 
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 

July 1, 2024 
 
This meeting was conducted in compliance with the Open Meetings Act as written in statute. A 
quorum of the members of the Board attended in person at the TAD offices. 
 
These minutes are a summary of the only subjects the Board addressed and the actions it took. 
For details, see the agenda and video posted on TAD’s website at this URL: 
https://www.tad.org/board-of-directors and Video recording posted at:  
https://www.facebook.com/TarrantAD 
 

Members present: 
Mr. Alan Blaylock 
Ms. Wendy Burgess, Tax Assessor Collector 
Mr. Gary Losada 
Mr. Vince Puente, Chair 
Mr. Matt Bryant 
Mr. Eric Morris 
Ms. Callie Rigney 
 
Also Participating: 
Mr. Joe Don Bobbitt, Chief Appraiser 
Mr. Brad Patrick, Director of Administration 
 
Not Present: 
Mr. Rich DeOtte 
Ms. Gloria Peña, Secretary 
 
Vince Puente called the meeting to order at 9:02am, verified a quorum was present and the 
notice was posted timely. After pledges and the Invocation, the Board took up the following 
agenda items: 
 
 6. Recognize Visitors; Hear Public Comments 
 
Mr. Casey, Mr. Dodson, Ms. Kurtzman, Mr. Bennett, Ms. Reddy and Ms. Seri spoke.  
 
 7. The Oath of Office was administered by Judge Tim O’Hare  

Newly elected board members Matt Bryant, Eric Morris, and Callie Rigney were sworn in. 

 8. The new members were seated, and the quorum was again verified 

 9. Recognition of Visitors/Comments 

https://www.tad.org/board-of-directors
https://www.facebook.com/TarrantAD


 

 
56 

Tarrant County Sheriff Bill Waybourn, Dr. Robert Pearle Senior Pastor of Birchman Baptist, and 

Tarrant County Judge Tim O’Hare spoke. 

 10. Special Presentation by State Representative David Cook 
 
The Honorable David Cook presented the new members with resolutions from his office. 
 

11. Propose Future Agenda Items; Set Next Meeting Date; Adjourn 
 
Ms. Rigney proposed three future agenda items regarding the schedule for reappraising residential 
properties within the District, the evidence needed to increase the valuation for residential properties 
within the District, and the requirements, once a property is officially reduced in value below the 
appraisal district’s original valuation, to affix that value as the baseline value for that property in future 
years.   

 
The next meeting is a called meeting for July 22, 2024, at 8:30am at the Arlington ISD 
Administration Building, 690 E Lamar Blvd. Arlington, Texas; the meeting adjourned at 9:55am. 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Gloria Peña, Board Secretary 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Vince Puente, Board Chair  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
57 

Tarrant Appraisal District 
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 

July 22, 2024 
 
This meeting was conducted in compliance with the Open Meetings Act as written in the 
statute. A quorum of the members of the Board attended in person at the Arlington ISD 
Administration Building at 690 E Lamar Blvd in Arlington, Texas. 
 
These minutes are a summary of the only subjects the Board addressed and the actions it took. 
For details, see the agenda, supporting documents and video posted on TAD’s website at this 
URL: https://www.tad.org/board-of-directors and Video recording posted on TAD’s Facebook 
and YouTube Channels. 
 
Members present: 
Mr. Alan Blaylock 
Mr. Matt Bryant 
Ms. Wendy Burgess, Tax Assessor Collector 
Mr. Rich DeOtte 
Mr. Gary Losada 
Mr. Eric Morris 
Ms. Gloria Peña, Secretary 
Mr. Vince Puente, Chair 
Ms. Callie Rigney 
 
Also Participating: 
Mr. Joe Don Bobbitt, Chief Appraiser 
Mr. Brad Patrick, Director of Administration 
Mr. Matthew Tepper, TAD Attorney 
 
Chair Puente called the meeting to order at 8:31am, verified a quorum was present and the 
notice was posted timely. After pledges and the Invocation, the Board took up the following 
agenda items: 
 6. Recognize Visitors; Hear Public Comments 
 
Mr. Fisher, Ms. Grams, Mr. Ray, Ms. Bowman, Ms. Alexander, Mr. Morales, Mr. Bennett, Mr. 
Wilshire, Ms. Lunski, Ms. Seri, Mr. Klos, Mr. Adams, Mr. Crouch, Mr. Dodson, & Ms. Mang 
spoke.  
 

7.  Action Items 
 

 a.   Action regarding potential amendment to managed print service agreement with Xerox 
to include an updated lease for new printer/copier equipment 

Mr. Losada moved to table this item and Mr. DeOtte seconded. The vote was 9-0 and the 
motion was tabled. 

https://www.tad.org/board-of-directors


 

 
58 

 b.   Action regarding permission for Chief Appraiser to enter into an Interlocal Agreement 
with Tarrant County and Tarrant County 9-1-1 District for Aerial Imagery Project  

 
Ms. Peña moved to authorize the Chief to enter into an interlocal agreement with Tarrant 
County and Tarrant County 9-1-1 District for Aerial Imagery Project as presented. Mr. DeOtte 
seconded, and the motion passed, 9-0. 
 
8.  Recess to executive/closed session pursuant to the following part(s) of the Texas Open 

Meetings Act Government Code Ch. 551, for the following purposes:  
Section 551.071 – Consultation with attorney on legal aspects of contracts or 
deliberation on a matter in which the Board of Directors seeks the advice of its attorney 
about contemplated litigation or on a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the 
governmental body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the 
State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Open Meetings Act. 
Section 551.076 – Deliberation regarding security devices, security software or security 
audits 

The board recessed into executive session at 9:47am. 
 
9.  Return to Open Session for Possible Action on Items Deliberated on in Executive/Closed 
Session 

Reconvene in open session for possible further discussion and possible action on items 
deliberated in executive session related to legal aspects of contacts or security devices, 
software, or audits.  

The board returned from executive session at 1:52pm and took no action. 
 
10.  Action Items, cont. 
 

a. Discussion and possible action on vote to authorize the Chief Appraiser to negotiate 
and enter into a contract with a CAMA vendor.  
 

Mr. Blaylock moved to authorize the Chief Appraiser to negotiate with the top three vendors 
(GSA, Esri, and True Prodigy) and bring a contract to the board to approve and finalize. Ms. 
Peña seconded, and the motion passed unanimously, 9-0.  

 
b. Discuss and take possible action to direct the Chief Appraiser to consider a property’s 

previous property appraisals, settlements, and reductions in value when subsequently 
appraising that same property’s property value 
 

Mr. Bryant moved to direct the Chief Appraiser to prepare a reappraisal plan that, beginning in 
the tax year 2025, the Chief Appraiser consider the most recent appraisal of residential 
properties prepared by the appraisal district, along with any, settlements, and reductions in 
value when appraising the property in the next year when the property is appraised by the 
district. Ms. Rigney seconded, and the motion passed unanimously, 9-0. 

 



 

 
59 

c. Discuss and take possible action to direct the Chief Appraiser on the frequency of 
appraising properties within the parameters allowed by state law.  

 
Ms. Rigney moved to direct the Chief Appraiser to prepare a reappraisal plan that requires him 
and his designees employed by the appraisal district to only appraise residentially coded 
properties every three years within the parameters allowed by state law. Mr. Bryant seconded. 
Mr. Losada asked for clarification that this would include landlord rentals and Ms. Rigney 
agreed it would. The motion failed, 3-6, with Mr. Bryant, Ms. Rigney, and Mr. Morris voting yes.  
 
Mr. DeOtte repeated the exact motion only changing the frequency of appraising properties to 
every two years and it was seconded by Ms. Peña and passed 6-3 with Mr. Bryant, Ms. Rigney, 
and Mr. Morris voting against.  

 
d. Discuss and take possible action to freeze residential property values for Tax Year 

2025 at current property values, except for new construction.  
 
Mr. Bryant moved to direct the Chief Appraiser to prepare a reappraisal plan that does not 
reappraise residential property values for Tax Year 2025 and to carry over current property 
values except for new improvements and construction. Ms. Rigney seconded, and the motion 
passed unanimously, 9-0. 
 

e. Discuss and take possible action regarding an Appraisal District policy that sets 
appraisal caps or thresholds of five percent on properties, absent clear and convincing 
evidence, or other possible limitations, for Tax Year 2026 and subsequent years. 

 
Ms. Rigney moved to direct the Chief Appraiser to prepare a reappraisal plan that requires him 
and his designees employed by the appraisal district to obtain and rely on clear and convincing 
evidence of the market value of a residentially coded property whose market value is increased 
above a threshold level of 5% or more than the market value as determined in the prior year’s 
appraisal roll. Mr. Bryant seconded, and the motion passed unanimously, 9-0. 
 

11. Propose Future Agenda Items; Set Next Meeting Date; Adjourn 
 
Mr. Blaylock proposed, and Ms. Peña seconded a future agenda item instructing the Chief 
Appraiser to pursue the Texas Comptroller Transparency Stars Award. The next meeting is a 
regular meeting for August 9, 2024, at 8:00am at the Tarrant Appraisal District, 2500 Handley-
Ederville Rd.; the meeting adjourned at 2:38pm. 
 
____________________________________ 
Gloria Peña, Board Secretary 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Vince Puente, Board Chair  



 

 
60 

Action Item 13(b):  Action regarding permission for Chief Appraiser to enter into an 

Interlocal Agreement with Tarrant County for Sheriff’s Department Security Services 

 

Board approval is sought to enter into an extension of an interlocal agreement for security 

services. The extension of the original agreement entered into on March 6, 2020, would be for 

Tarrant County to provide for one Sheriff Deputy to be assigned for on-site security of TAD’s 

property, employees and customers. The agreement provides security during regular work 

hours of 8:00 to 5:00 Monday through Friday excluding holidays. The agreement does not 

provide coverage for extended business hours or business days (weekends). The District 

included additional funds in the 2024 and proposed 2025 budget for weekend security, 

extended hour coverage and funds for an additional officer on as needed basis. The annual 

additional amount is $32,100. The current agreement covers the twelve months from October 1, 

2023, through September 30, 2024. The proposed extension will cover October 1, 2024, 

through September 30, 2025, continuing to align the agreement to the County’s next full fiscal 

year, at a total cost of $192,895.66. 

 

Budget Note:  Funds are included in the FY 2024 Budget and in the Proposed FY 2025 Budget 

 

Staff Recommendation: 

 

Authorize execution of proposed Interlocal Agreement with Tarrant County for 

Sheriff’s Department Security Services for October 1, 2024, through September 30, 

2025, for a total cost of $192,895.66. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
61 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
62 

Action Item 13(c):  Discussion and possible action concerning Transparency Stars 

program through the Texas Comptroller 

 

Description of Program from the Comptroller’s website: 

The Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts' Transparency Stars program recognizes local 

governments for going above and beyond in their transparency efforts. The program recognizes 

government entities that accomplish the following: 

• Open their books in the areas of traditional finances, contracts and procurement, 

economic development, public pensions, debt obligations, and open government and 

compliance. 

• Provide clear and meaningful financial information by posting financial documents, as 

well as thorough summaries, visualizations, downloadable data and other relevant 

information. 

 

TAD Admin staff have begun preliminary discussions on the process necessary to apply for the 

Transparency Stars designation. There are multiple categories of the award that can be 

obtained and staff will work to attain the award in all pertinent areas.  Initially, the “Traditional 

Finances” and “Open Government and Compliance” categories will be the most logical to 

pursue as many of the requirements are already in place on TAD.org. The process will include 

consolidating data into dedicated pages on the website to make it easier to obtain data for 

users. 

 

Staff Recommendation: 

 

Direct Chief Appraiser and TAD staff to continue pursuit of Transparency Stars 

designation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
63 

Action Item 13(d):  Action regarding award of contract for retiree group medical 

supplement insurance for 2025 

 

Background on retiree medical benefits:  

1) Per TAD’s personnel policy, TAD provides retiree medical supplement insurance for 

employees hired prior to January 1, 2024. In this context, “retirees” means those who terminate 

employment with TAD while participating in, vested in, and eligible for retirement benefits under 

the terms of Texas County and District Retirement System. Since TAD first provided such 

benefits in 1989, providing medical benefits for retirees has required annual approval by the 

Board.  

2) Currently, TAD has two categories of retirees: those who retire at age 65 or older and those 

“early retirees” who retire before reaching age 65.  

3) TAD’s providing medical benefits for retirees has been premised on the assumption that 

those who retire at age 65 or older will be eligible for Medicare benefits.  

4) For those who retire at age 65 or older, TAD makes available and pays part of the cost of a 

“Medicare supplement” insurance plan. In the early years of providing such insurance, the 

Board determined that it would make a monthly cash payment directly to those who were not 

eligible under the insurance plan because they lived outside its coverage area, with the payment 

equal to what TAD would pay on their behalf if they lived in the coverage area. Doing so was 

premised on the assumption that such retirees would use the payment to purchase their own 

“Medicare supplement” or similar insurance plan. The option of receiving such direct cash 

payment was subsequently offered to any retiree age 65 or older.  

5) Early retirees may choose to continue to participate, until they reach age 65, in the medical 

insurance coverages that TAD makes available to its then current active employees but must 

pay the full cost of the coverage for themselves (and their spouses if such coverage is elected) 

without any financial contribution from TAD. When an early retiree reaches age 65, he or she 

becomes eligible to take advantage of any “Medicare supplement” or similar insurance plan or 

the monthly cash payment that TAD then makes available to those who retire at age 65 or older.  

6) With the cost of “Medicare supplement” insurance plans rising and the issue of reducing 

governmental bodies’ unfunded liabilities coming into sharper focus, the Board elected in 2013 

to “cap” at $150.00 per month the amount that TAD would pay toward the premium of such 

insurance or pay directly to retirees in lieu of such insurance. As a result, since 2013 retirees 

must pay any amounts over that $150.00 per month.  

7) At present in 2024, we have 90 active retirees.  

8) For FY 2024 (current) those retirees selecting the provided Blue Cross Blue Shield 

supplemental policy do not pay any additional monthly premium above the $150.00 cap as the 

monthly cost of premium for 2024 is currently $120.30. If the retiree elects to include a spouse, 

the retiree pays the entire $120.30 for the spouse’s monthly premium.  

 

 



 

 
64 

Contract award for retiree group medical insurance for 2025:  

With the assistance of our insurance consultant, Higginbotham, we issued a Request for 

Proposal for retiree insurance for 2025. We received three bids, with that from our current 

provider, Blue Cross Blue Shield, containing the best combination of benefits and affordability. 

Their proposed monthly rate per retiree is $123.90. Because the premium quoted is below the 

$150 capped monthly rate, retirees would not pay anything in additional monthly premiums. 

Retirees would pay the entire $123.90 premium for spouses. Funds are budgeted (based on a 

$150.00 capped monthly premium rate) in TAD’s proposed FY 2025 Budget to cover the retiree 

benefits and insurance premiums. Using the current number of retirees, the estimated cost for 

FY2025 will be $133,812.  

 

Budget Note:  Funds are included in the Proposed FY 2025 Budget 

 

Staff Recommendation: 

Award contract for retiree medical insurance in 2025 to Blue Cross Blue Shield 

with a rate of $123.90 per month and authorize Chief Appraiser/Executive Director 

and/or Director of Administration to execute all documents necessary to 

implement this contract. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
65 

 

CARRIER

Premium CURRENT RENEWAL

$120.30 $123.90 Medical $279.08 65-69 $156.49

RX (Elixir Ins) $247.07 70-74 $187.76

75-79 $219.71

80+ $230.64

Annual Combined Medical Deductible

Annual Combined Out-of-Pocket Maximum

Referral Requirement 

Inpatient Hospital   

Inpatient Hospital - Acute

Inpatient Mental Health Care

Limited to 190 lifetime days

Skilled Nursing Facility

Benefit Period 1-20 days

No prior hospitalization required

Home Health / Hospice

Home Health

Emergent & Urgent Care

Emergency Care (Worldwide)

Cost share waived if admitted within 3 days for the same condition.

Urgently Needed Services (Worldwide)

Cost share waived if admitted within 3 days for the same condition.

Ambulance Services (Ground)

Health Care Professional Services

Primary Care Physician Services

Physician Specialist Services

Excluding Psychiatric and Radiology Services 

Other Health Care Professional Services

Medicare-Covered Specialist Visits

Chiropractic Services (Medicare-covered)

Coverage is limited to manual manipulation of the spine to correct for 

subluxation.

Podiatry Services (Medicare-covered)

Coverage is limited to foot exams or treatment for diabetes-related 

nerve damage or medically necessary treatment for foot injuries or 

diseases.

Acupuncture (Medicare-covered)

Coverage for chronic low back pain up to 12 visits in 90 days. No 

more than 20 acupuncture treatments may be administered annually.

Hearing Exam (Medicare-covered)

Coverage for diagnostic hearing and balance evaluations to determine 

if you need medical treatment.

Outpatient Rehabilitation Services

Cardiac Rehabilitation Services

Maximum of 2 one-hour sessions per day up to 36 sessions in 36 

weeks.

Limit to 36 per year. Medicare-covered Intensive Cardiac Rehab up 

to 72 sessions per year

Pulmonary Rehabilitation Services

Limit to 36 sessions per year

Supervised Exercise Therapy for PAD

Up to 36 sessions in 12 weeks

Occupational Therapy Services

Physical Therapy and Speech Language Pathology Services

Outpatient Mental Health Services

Mental Health Specialty Services - Individual Visit

Mental Health Specialty Services - Group Visit

Psychiatric Services - Individual Visit

Psychiatric Services - Group Visit

Partial Hospitalization

Outpatient Substance Abuse Services

Outpatient Substance Abuse: Individual Visit

Outpatient Substance Abuse: Group Visit

Opioid Services

Outpatient Diagnostic/Therapeutic Radiation Services

Lab Services

Diagnostic Procedures

Therapeutic Radiology

Diagnostic Radiology Services / X-Ray

Advanced Imaging (MRI, MRA, CT Scan, PET)

Other Outpatient Services

Outpatient Observation

Outpatient Hospital Services

Ambulatory Surgical Center (ASC) Services

OP Blood Services - Coverage begins with the first pint of blood

DME, Prosthetics, Diabetic Supplies

Durable Medical Equipment (DME)

Prosthetics/Orthotics

Medical Supplies

Diabetes Supplies and Services - Preferred Testing Supplies
4

Medicare Part B Rx Drugs

Medicare Part B Rx Drugs: Chemotherapy/Radiation

Medicare Part B Rx Drugs: Other

Home Infusion Therapy Administration

Medicare Part D RX

RX Max Out of Pocket

RX Deductible

Generic

Preferred Brand

Non-Preferred Drug

Specialty

$60

33% 25%

$2,000 $2,000

Not Offered

None None

$0 $5

$18 $25

$68

20% $0 copay Not Included

$0 copay $0 copay Not Included

20% $0 copay Not Included

20% $0 copay $10 Copay

0% 0% $10 Copay

20% $0 copay $10 Copay

20% $0 copay $10 Copay

$225 copay $0 copay $10 Copay

$0 copay $0 copay $0 copay

$0 copay $0 copay $10 Copay

$225 copay $0 copay $10 Copay

$20 copay $0 copay $10 copay

$200 copay $0 copay $10 copay

$50 copay $0 copay $10 copay

20% $0 copay $10 copay

$0 copay $0 copay $10 copay

$0 copay $0 copay $10 copay

$40 copay $0 copay $10 copay

$35 copay $0 copay $10 copay

$35 copay $0 copay $10 copay

$55 copay $0 copay $10 copay

$35 copay $0 copay $10 copay

$40 copay $0 copay $10 copay

$40 copay $0 copay $10 copay

$40 copay $0 copay $10 copay

$20 copay $0 copay $10 copay

$40 copay $0 copay $10 copay

$30 copay $0 copay $10 copay

$20 copay $0 copay $10 copay

$20 copay $0 copay Not Included

$15 copay $0 copay Not Included

$20 copay $0 copay Not Included

$40 copay $0 copay $10 copay

$45 copay $0 Copay $10 copay

$20 copay / PCP $0 copay / PCP $10 copay / 

$200 copay $0 Copay $10 copay

$20 copay $0 Copay $10 copay

$90 copay $0 copay $50 copay

$40 copay $0 copay $10 copay

$0 copay $0 copay $10 copay

$200/day (days 1-6)

$0/day (days 7+)

$0/day (days 1-6)

$0/day (days 7+)

$0/day (days 1-

6)

$0 copay /per day $0 copay /per day
$0 copay /per 

day

None None None

$200/day (days 1-7)

$0/day (days 8+)

$0/day (days 1-7)

$0/day (days 8+)

$0/day (days 1-

7)

$0 $0 $0

$2,500 Unlimited

Age Rated

$500

BCBS TAC -Transamerica Life The Hartford



 

 
66 

Action Item 13(e):  Action regarding award of contract for financial audit services 

 

Fiscal year 2023 was the final year for TAD’s existing audit services contract with Pattillo, Brown 
& Hill, LLP. In accordance with Section 6.063 of the Texas Property Tax Code, a Request for 
Annual Financial Audit Services Proposals was prepared and publicly advertised on two 
separate occasions as well as on the District’s website. TAD received one proposal - from our 
current auditor. 
 
Pattillo, Brown & Hill has governmental auditing experience (with cities, schools, counties and 
appraisal districts) and they possess staff with the credentials and background required to 
properly perform TAD’s audit. 
 
For reference, the most recent years of service and amounts paid are as follows: 
 
 
                FY 2018 audit $22,000  

     FY 2019 audit $22,000 

     FY 2020 audit $23,100 

     FY 2021 audit $23,100 

     FY 2022 audit $23,100 

     FY 2023 audit $24,250 

 

Per the Request for Proposals, Pattillo, Brown & Hill have proposed the following not-to-exceed 

figures for the initial three-year period and the subsequent, optional three-year period: 

 

     FY 2024 audit $26,650  

     FY 2025 audit $26,650 

     FY 2026 audit $27,500 

     FY 2027 audit $27,500 

     FY 2028 audit $28,300 

     FY 2029 audit $28,300 

 

Budget Note:  Funds are included in the Proposed FY 2025 Budget for the initial year of the 

proposal  

 

Staff Recommendation:   

Award a contract to Pattillo, Brown & Hill, LLP to perform financial audit services 

for a three-year period with an option for an additional three years. The cost for 

the audit services will be for an amount not to exceed $80,800 for the initial three-

year period with three optional years, not to exceed an additional $84,100 as 

specified in the bid response. The total for the six years will not exceed $164,900. 

 
 

 


